
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2022\Plan Com Notice 101022.docx 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 


Notice is hereby given that Plan Commission of the City of 


Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as 


indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


Meeting of: PLAN COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Monday, October 10, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m. 


 


Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


(Virtual and In-Person) 


 
In-Person: Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 


   321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


 


Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87259250563?pwd=cmZZYzQ4WW0xQjdBbklKSGc5Yk0xZz09 


 


Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 872 5925 0563 Passcode:  566274 


 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any 
written comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning 


Administrator at 608-646-0421.   
 


 


AGENDA 


1. Call to Order 


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of September 12, 2022.   


3. Council Representative Report. 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


5. Planned Development – General Development Plan for Lots 1, 3 and 4 within the 51 


West Development. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


6. 314 W. Main Street - site plan amendment.  (Tabled on August 8, 2022) 


7. 317 S. Division Street - façade improvements. 


8. Mobile service support structure ordinance to amend sections 78-015, 78-105 and 


Appendix C, repealing and recreating section 78-206(7)(c) to Chapter 78, Stoughton 


Code of Ordinances. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87259250563?pwd=cmZZYzQ4WW0xQjdBbklKSGc5Yk0xZz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2022\Plan Com Notice 101022.docx 


 


9. Future agenda items. 


10. Adjournment. 
 


 


COMMISSIONERS:  
Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair   Tom Robinson   Dorann Bradford 


Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair  Tom Majewski  Phil Caravello 


Al Farrow 


 


E-MAIL NOTICES: 
Leadership Team     Council members  Steve Kittelson 


City Attorney Matt Dregne   Stoughton Hub  Area Townships  


Peter Sveum     Michael Stacey  Chamber of Commerce 


smonette@stolib.org    Spencer Meier   wstotv981@gmail.com  


tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com  Sue Strandlie   Bob Dvorak  


Jeff Groenier 


Bruce Hollar     Todd Nelson   Pam Kosanovich 


Blake George     Amy Hartsough  Attorney Rick Manthe 


 


   


            


 


Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 


accommodation, should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at least 24 


hours before the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made. In 


addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have 


access to the internet should also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the number above at 


least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  



mailto:smonette@stolib.org

mailto:wstotv981@gmail.com

mailto:tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com






T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  091222.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, September 12, 2022 at 6:00 pm 


Hybrid Meeting 


 


Members Present:  Mayor Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Dorann Bradford; 


Phil Caravello; Tom Robinson and Tom Majewski 


Members Absent: Al Farrow 


Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Planning and Development Director 


Guests:  Bob Dvorak; Rick Manthe; Tim Kotlowski; Austin Kotlowski; Eric Olson; Alexi 


Heidkamp and M. Havlik. 


 


 


1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Plan Commission meeting minutes of August 8, 2022.   


Motion by Schumacher to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion 


carried unanimously.   


 


3. Council Representative Report. 


Caravello stated the Common Council approved O-16-2022 and R-169-2022. 


 


4. Status of Current Developments.   


Scheel gave an overview of the status of developments as outlined in the packet of materials.  


He highlighted the number of single-family home permits and that there are several new 


permit applications being processed now. Schumacher inquired whether the easement and 


site plan are still in the works by the owners of 314 W. Main Street and Scheel reported we 


plan to have them at a future meeting once the information becomes available. 


 


5. Rezoning request for 1008 Riverview Drive from SR-4 Single Family Residential to SR-


5 Single Family Residential. 


Scheel explained the request.  Schumacher inquired about the future driveway orientation 


and Eric Olson reported the driveway will be on Riverview Drive.  Olson also acknowledged 


the need to work with Stoughton Utilities regarding water and sanitary sewer laterals for the 


new parcel. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning 


ordinance as presented, 2nd by Bradford.   


 


Motion carried unanimously. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


09/12/22 


Page 2 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  091222.docx 


 


 


6. Certified survey map (CSM) request to split the parcel at 1008 Riverview Drive to 


create a new single family lot.  


Scheel explained the request and reinforced the need to work with Stoughton Utilities 


regarding how the new parcel will be served with sanitary sewer and water laterals. 


 


Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM resolution as 


presented, 2nd by Schumacher.   


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


7. Rezoning request for 2232 Otteson Drive from Institutional to Planned Development – 


General Development Plan. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning ordinance 


as presented, 2nd by Bradford.   


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


8. Vacation of a portion of Velkommen Way at US Highway 51. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Alder Majewski suggested that a 15-foot pedestrian/bicycle easement be preserved in the 


area to be vacated to connect Nygaard Street to USH 51.  The easement is intended to 


accommodate a 10-foot wide sidewalk or shared-use path.  It is not intended to be construct 


at this time but will be a logical connection to the 10-foot sidewalk planned to be installed 


along USH 51 in 2026 with the DOT Majors Project. 


 


Motion by Majewski to recommend the Common Council approve the vacation as presented 


with the condition that a 15-foot pedestrian/bicycle easement be preserved in the area to be 


vacated to connect Nygaard Street to USH 51, 2nd by Caravello.   


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


9. Extra-territorial land division at 3511 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


09/12/22 


Page 3 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  091222.docx 


 


 


Motion by Bradford to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM resolution as 


presented, 2nd by Majewski. 


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


10. Discuss a zoning code amendment for communication towers. 


Attorney Rick Manthe discussed the state of City ordinances along with an overview of State 


and Federal regulations governing communication towers.  He discussed the concept to 


provide setback distances from properties that allow single-family homes and the more 


complicated process to develop a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) process. He discussed 


challenges with using a CUP process for regulation of such towers. 


 


The Commissioners agree we should move forward with considering ordinance amendments 


to restrict the setback distances from properties that allow single-family homes. 


 


11. Future agenda items. 


314 W. Main Street site plan; GDP for Lots 1, 3 and 4 at 51 West; Stone Crest Urban Service 


Area Amendment; Magnolia Springs Preliminary Plat 


 


12. Adjournment. 


Motion by Majewski to adjourn at 6:55  pm, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


Respectfully Submitted,  


 


Rodney J. Scheel 








S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Staff Reviews\Staff Reviews 2022\Status of development 101022.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com/planning 


 


 


 


Date:  September 22, 2022 


 


To:  Plan Commission Members 


   


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


  Michael Stacey 


  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


 


Subject: Status of Current Developments  


 


Status of Development: 


 Sinobec Resources – Landscaping planned for October, lighting backordered until 


November. 


 Stoughton Utilities Substation on McComb Road – Paving left to do. 


 Grosso Commercial Buildings – 441 Glacier Moraine Drive – Buildings under construction. 


 Riverfront Development – SIP approved.  Delayed due to contamination found onsite. 


 Dollar Tree – Landscaping, lighting, and bike rack still pending. 


 Pizza Hut - 1400 US Hwy 51 – Landscaping and bike rack still pending. 


 314 W. Main Street: 


- Owner is seeking to eliminate access easement/driveway off W. Main Street  


 Walmart landscaping – The landscaping contractor started planting on September 27th and 


plans to be done by October 10th weather permitting. 


 Isham Street extension project is under construction. 


 Emmi-Roth project is in process. 


 1680 Nygaard Street (Lot 18, 51 West) (81 unit apt) has been issued permits. 


 Magnolia Springs development has a USAA amendment approval coming up in October and 


applications for preliminary plat and rezoning have been submitted with public hearings 


coming up. 


 


 


 


 


 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/






\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\101022\PC Info\51 West Lot 1-3-4 GDP.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  October 5, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners  
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the October 10, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting  
 
 
Planned Development General Development Plan for 51 West Development, Lots 1, 3 and 
4. 
The applicant introduced a concept plan in August of 2022, which included plans to create a 
condominium plat.  The applicant has now decided to move forward with a subdivision plat to 
create individual zero-lot-line duplex lots.  This request is for the general development plan, 
which outlines specific exceptions from the TR-6 Two Family Residential District requirements.  
The lot numbering changed after the original General Development Plan was approved and prior 
to the final plat being recorded which is identified below.   
 
The original approved GDP for these lots allowed the following exceptions: 
 


• Allow multiple buildings on a single lot; 
• Allow Townhouse’s of up to 4-units each; 
• Allow Lot 1 to have up to 12 units; 
• Allow Lot 2 (now lot 3) to have up to 12 units; 
• Allow Lot 3 (now lot 4) to have up to 6 units; 
• Minimum rear setback of 20 feet. 


 
 
 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\101022\PC Info\51 West Lot 1-3-4 GDP.doc 


The new proposed exceptions are as follows: 
 


• Allow Lot 1 to have up to 8 duplex buildings or 16 units (6.86 units per acre); 
• Allow Lot 3 to have up to 7 duplex buildings or 14 units (6.59 units per acre); 
• Allow Lot 4 to have up to 4 duplex buildings or 8 units (7.54 units per acre);  
• Minimum rear setback of 20 feet (30 feet typical); 
• Minimum street frontage of 40 feet (50 feet typical). 


 
The ordinance and application materials are provided.  A public hearing and recommendation to 
Council is necessary. 







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday October 10, 
2022 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a proposed 
rezoning of Lots 1, 3, and 4 located within the 51 West Development on the west side of US 
Highway 51, owned by RHD Properties, LLC.  These lots are proposed to be rezoned to PD – 
Planned Development – General Development Plan (GDP). 


Additional information including a GDP map can be viewed at: 
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 


Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  (Virtual 
and In-Person) 


In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 
321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


Virtual:   You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87259250563?pwd=cmZZYzQ4WW0xQjdBbklKSGc5Yk0xZz09 


Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799     Meeting ID: 872 5925 0563 Passcode: 566274 


If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 


For questions regarding this notice, please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-
646-0421


Published September 22 and September 29, 2022 Hub 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Planning GDP -  51 West Lots 1, 3, 4 Notice.doc 



http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87259250563?pwd=cmZZYzQ4WW0xQjdBbklKSGc5Yk0xZz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Approving a Planned Development - General Development Plan for Lots 1, 3 and 4  


within 51 West Development 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval  - 0  
Fiscal Impact:       Increased Tax Base and Park Impact Fees 
File Number: O -    - 2022 Date Introduced: 


Re-Introduced: 
 


 
RECITALS 


 
A. AY Development LLC (the “Applicant”) has requested that Lots 1, 3 and 4 within the 51 


West Development be rezoned to Planned Development - General Development Plan (PD-
GDP) to allow 19 duplex buildings for a total of 38 residential units.  The Applicant has 
submitted a General Development Plan (the “GDP”) for Lots 1, 3 and 4, attached as Exhibit 
A. 
 


B. The Planned Development District is intended to provide a voluntary regulatory framework 
designed to encourage and promote improved environmental and aesthetic design in the 
City by allowing for greater design freedom, imagination and flexibility in the development 
of land while insuring substantial compliance with the basic intent of the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan.  The comparable zoning district for the land proposed 
to be zoned PD-Planned Development, used for establishing base-line zoning requirements 
and identifying needed flexibility is TR-6 Two-Family Residential. 
 


C. On October 10, 2022, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing 
regarding the Applicant’s proposed Planned Development zoning and the GDP.  The public 
hearing was preceded by the publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice required by 
law.  
 


D. The Plan Commission found that the proposed Planned Development zoning is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of the proposed 
rezoning and the GDP, subject to certain conditions.   
 


E. The Common Council has considered the Plan Commission’s recommendation, and finds 
that, subject to certain conditions, the proposed Planned Development zoning and General 
Development Plan are consistent with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and have 
the potential for enhancing the use of the lands and increasing the City’s tax base. 
 
 
 







2 


ORDINANCE 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as 
follows: 
 


1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if set 
forth in full. 


 
2. Subject to the conditions set forth in below, the General Development Plan for Lots 1, 3 


and 4 is approved as presented. 
 


3. Applicable park impact fees are due at the time of building permit issuance. 
 


4. It is expected, that a subdivision platting process will be necessary to market the units 
individually as zero-lot-line duplexes. 
 


5. No part of Lots 1, 3 and 4 may be developed until a Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) 
has been approved by the City Plan Commission. 
 


6. Conditions outlined in the “Agreement to Undertake Development (51 West 
Development)” must be satisfied before building permits for this project can be issued. 
 


7. The following flexibilities to the otherwise applicable requirements are approved: 
 


• Lot 1 shall have up to 8 duplex buildings or 16 units (6.86 units per acre); 
• Lot 3 shall have up to 7 duplex buildings or 14 units (6.59 units per acre); 
• Lot 4 shall have up to 4 duplex buildings or 8 units (7.54 units per acre);  
• Minimum rear setback of 20 feet (30 feet typical); 
• Minimum street frontage of 40 feet (50 feet typical). 


 
8. Lot 1, 3 and 4 shall be developed and used in full compliance with all standards and 


requirements in Chapter 78 of the City Code that apply to lands zoned TR-6 Two-Family 
Residential, except as flexibilities are expressly authorized in this ordinance.  Chapter 78 
of the City Code, the General Development Plan, this Ordinance and the approved Specific 
Implementation Plan will constitute the zoning regulations for the property, and may be 
enforced as any zoning regulation in the City of Stoughton.  A copy of this Ordinance,  
General Development Plan shall be maintained and kept on file by the City of Stoughton 
Planning Office.  
 


9. Notwithstanding the delayed effectiveness of the zoning change and approvals pursuant to 
Section 2, above, the Applicant may seek approval of a Subdivsion Plat and Specific 
Implementation Plan at any time after the adoption of this Ordinance.  
 







3 


10. Any General Development Plan previously approved for all or any part of Lots 1, 3 and 4 
shall be null and void upon the adoption of this Ordinance. 
 


11. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law.   
 
 
 


 
Dates 
Council Adopted:     
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\51 West Lots 1-3-4 GDP Ordinance.docx 







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 


September 29, 2022 Page 1 of 17 


GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 


Lots 1, 3 and 4 at 51 West 
Stoughton, WI 


EXHIBIT  A



bhollar

Image







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 2 of 17 


 


 


 


Current Owner 


 
RHD Properties LLC, Fifty One West LLC 


Contact: Bob Dvorak 
 


 


Planned Development Project Team 
 


 


Owner: 
Contact: AY Development, LLC 


608-698-1500 


sherry@cbsuccess.com 
 


 


Project Civil Engineering: 
D’Onofrio Kottke and Associates Inc. 


Contact: Bruce Hollar 
 


 


Architect: 
Concepts in Architecture, LLC 


Contact: Jeff Gronier 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 



mailto:sherry@cbsuccess.com





51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 3 of 17 


 


Contents 


 


1 Introduction .......................................................................................................................................... 4 


2 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Location Map ................................................................................ 5 


3 Vicinity/Plat Map ................................................................................................................................. 6 


4 Planned Development Written Description .................................................................................... 7 


 4.1 General Relationship to the 2017 Comprehensive Plan .......................................................... 7 


 4.2 Relationship to Nearby Properties and Public Streets ............................................................. 7 


 4.3 Planned Development Proposal .................................................................................................. 8 


 4.4 Project Timing and Phasing ......................................................................................................... 8 


 4.5 Neighborhood Character/Theme ............................................................................................... 8 


 4.6 Stormwater Management .............................................................................................................. 8 


 4.7 Park/Open Space .......................................................................................................................... 9 


 4.8 Utilities ............................................................................................................................................ 9 


 4.9 Transportation ................................................................................................................................ 9 


  4.9.1 Pedestrian Streets ............................................................................................................. 9 


  4.9.2 Pedestrian Connections ................................................................................................... 9 


 5 Development Standards ............................................................................................................. 10 


 5.1 Land Use, Density, Bulk Requirements ................................................................................... 10  


          5.1.1 Density and Intensity Requirements ........................................................................... 10 


 5.2 Specific Flexibilities ..................................................................................................................... 10  


 5.3 Residential Design Guidelines ................................................................................................... 11 


  5.3.1 Building Design .................................................................................................................. 12 


  5.3.2 Building Materials .............................................................................................................. 12 


  5.3.3 Doors and Windows ......................................................................................................... 12 


  5.3.4 Service Areas and Mechanicals ........................................................................................ 12 


  5.3.5 Landscape and Site Treatment ......................................................................................... 13 


  5.3.6 Decorative Fencing and Walls ......................................................................................... 13 


6 Conceptual Landscaping / Site Design Plan .................................................................................. 14 


7 Building Types and Themes ............................................................................................................. 15 


 7.1 Land Use Development Areas ................................................................................................... 15 


8 Elevations ............................................................................................................................................ 16 


9 First Floor Plan and Lower Level .................................................................................................... 17 


  


  







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 4 of 17 


 


 


 


1 Introduction 


 


This document details the General Development Plan for Lots 1, 3 and 4 in the 51 West subdivision 


in Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


 


Parcel Numbers: 


051001188102 


051001188322 


051001188432 


 


Access Dane Records: 


https://accessdane.countyofdane.com/051001188102 


https://accessdane.countyofdane.com/051001188322 


https://accessdane.countyofdane.com/051001188432 


  



https://accessdane.countyofdane.com/051001188102

https://accessdane.countyofdane.com/051001188322

https://accessdane.countyofdane.com/051001188432





5
1 W


e
st –


 L
o


ts 1, 3
 a


n
d


 4
 


S
to


u
g


h
to


n
, W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 


 S
ep


tem
b


er 2
9
, 2


0
2
2 


 
P


age 5
 o


f 17 


               


 
  


2 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Location Map 



bhollar

Image







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 6 of 17 


 


3 Parcels in the vicinity of Lots 1, 3 and 4 
 


Parcel 
Number Legal Description Parcel Owner 


51001182002 51 West Outlot 1 RHD Properties LLC 


51001181542 51 West Lot 5 RHD Properties LLC 


51001189652 51 West Outlot 3 Stoughton, City of 


51001189002 51 West Lot 10 RHD Properties LLC 


51001188982 51 West Lot 9 RHD Properties LLC 


51001188872 51 West Lot 8 RHD Properties LLC 


51001188762 51 West Lot 7 RHD Properties LLC 


51001189542 51 West Outlot 2 Stoughton, City of 


 


  



bhollar

Image







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 7 of 17 


 


4 Planned Development Written Description 


 


4.1 General Relationship to the 2017 Comprehensive Plan 
 


The new 51 West subdivision is in an area designated as the Northwest Planned Mixed Use (MU) 


area in the 2017 Comprehensive Plan. This area is intended for a mix of commercial, office, light 


industrial and high intensity multi-family residential uses. 


 


Planned MU is intended for residential buildings of three or more units; however, additional 


statements in the policy allow for more flexibility, as follows: 


 


• “The City should carefully monitor the development of multi-family housing within Planned Mixed- Use 


areas in order to support the City’s goal of maintaining its predominately single-family character.” 


• “The Planned Mixed-Use category is intended to allow consideration of a range of uses and zoning districts, 


with the understanding that the appropriate combination and arrangement of uses and zoning districts will be 


approved on a case-by-case basis.” 


 


Lots 1, 3 and 4 were originally approved as permitted and conditional uses as identified in TR-6 


zoning district with a Unit Allowance Density of up to 12 units based on 15 x two-unit buildings. 


 


4.2 Relationship to Nearby Properties and Public Streets 
 


The general development concept site plan for 51 West depicts a mixed-use neighborhood with 


commercial along USH 51 frontage (west side) and a mix of residential unit types on both sides of 


USH 51. 


 


On the 51 West side, City of Stoughton has approved the following: 


 


• Lot 2 


o Permitted and conditional uses as identified in MR-24 zoning district 


o Unit Allowance (Density): up to 36 units 


 


• Lot 5 


o Permitted and conditional uses as identified in MR-24 zoning district 


o Unit Allowance (Density): up to 96 units 


 


• Lot 6 


o Conditional uses as identified in PD-GDP zoning district 


o Unit Allowance (Density): up to 20 units 


 


Lots 1, 3 and 4 are at the intersection of Palm Grass Way and Blue Grass Drive. 







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 8 of 17 


 


4.3 Planned Development Proposal 
 


We propose to build 19 duplex buildings for a total of 38 owner occupied units.  


 


A replat of lots 1, 3 and 4 creating 38 individual lots will be required. 


 


Each unit will be 1 story with 1342 square feet of living space (excluding the basement), 2 bedrooms 


/ 2 bathrooms and will feature high quality finishes, a 2-car garage, off street parking, covered 


porches and patios.   


 


This proposal will create a new PD-GDP zoning for Lots 1, 3 and 4. The standard zoning district 


for this type of development is TR-6 – Two Family residential and will be maintained under this 


proposal with some exceptions outlined in 5.2 below. An increase in density is one of the exceptions 


requested, however, the additional units will still maintain the cohesive character and vision of the 51 


West development while still substantially conforming to the City’s comprehensive plan.  


 


The goal is for each unit to be owner occupied which will provide a sense of community and pride 


of ownership. The City also benefits from the additional tax base and park fees along with providing 


more sites to choose from for home buyers. Lastly, additional residents to Stoughton are always 


good for the local economy and businesses of the neighborhood.  


 


4.4 Project Timing and Phasing 
 


The first phase of the 51 West project is to develop the east side of USH 51 with utility 


infrastructure extensions, road construction, mass grading and pond development. 


 


Lots 1, 3 and 4 will be developed in conjunction with the 51 West Phase 2 construction. 


 


Anticipated construction will begin in Spring of 2023. 


 


4.5 Neighborhood Character/Theme 
 


Our development team will work closely with Fifty One West LLC to ensure that our proposed 


building design, including exterior materials, meet the architectural requirements. 


 


4.6 Stormwater Management 
 


A regional stormwater pond for Lot 1, 3 & 4 has been designed to meet all City of Stoughton 


stormwater management requirements. It is located in Outlot 2 directly west and adjacent to Lot 3. 


The stormwater management system will control peak runoff rates for events ranging from the 1-


year through the 200-year event. Additionally, runoff volumes will be controlled for the annual 


average rainfall record (per county and state standards) but also for events ranging from the 1-year 







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 9 of 17 


through the 200-year event. This last requirement is necessary to prevent volume related flood 


elevation increases in landlocked basins which lie downstream from the proposed site. Note that 


these requirements will need to be met regardless of on-site development density and potential 


changes in drainage patterns within the site. 


 


Stormwater runoff for lots 1, 3 & 4 will flow into the adjacent streets and collected in the storm 


sewer system designed to convey runoff to the ponds in Outlot 2.  


 


4.7 Park/Open Space 
 


Abundant park and open space has been provided south of Lot 4 and includes a multiuse path 


extending across Outlot 3 westerly through an easement within Lot 3 and again across Outlot 2 to 


the western plat line of 51 West. Said path will also extend north along the east side of lots 1 and 4 


to the north plat line and southerly with the parkland offering a well connected trail system through 


the 51 West development. 


 


4.8 Utilities 
 


Fifty One West, LLC and MSA are coordinating water and sewer service laterals with the City of 


Stoughton. Utility infrastructure for the development on lots 1, 3 & 4 will connect directly to these 


public utilities once completed. 


 


Our project team is already working closely with MSA on coordination, location and connection 


details for water and sewer.  


 


Natural gas and electric utility distribution will be installed within utility easements included as part 


of the final plat. 


 


4.9 Transportation 
 


4.9.1 Pedestrian Streets 


  


Palm Grass Way and Blue Grass Drive public street improvements will include sidewalk on both 


sides of the street.  


 


4.9.2 Pedestrian Connections 


 


As noted earlier a multipurpose path will connect the public park in Outlot 3 across Palm Grass 


Way and into Outlot 2 for a future extension to the west. It will also run north along the east side of 


lots 1 and 4 to the north plat line 


 


 







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 10 of 17 


 


5 Development Standards 
 


5.1 Land Use, Density, Bulk Requirements 
 


Development of Lot 1, 3 & 4 (PD) in the 51 West subdivision will meet the standards of the TR-6 


zoning district with the exceptions detailed below: 


 


5.1.1 Density and Intensity Requirements 


 


o Maximum Gross Density (MGD): 


▪ Lot 1 = 6.86 units per acre 


▪ Lot 3 = 6.59 units per acre 


▪ Lot 4 = 7.54 units per acre 


▪ Total average of lots 1, 3, 4 = 6.89 units per acre 


 


5.2 Specific Flexibilities 


 


The following is the list of requested exceptions based on the Two-Family 
Residential District (TR-6): 


o Minimum lot frontage of 40 feet; 
o Minimum rear building setback = 20 feet 
o Unit allowance vs 6 units per acre (Density):   


▪ Lot 1 = 6.86 units per acre 


▪ Lot 3 = 6.59 units per acre 


▪ Lot 4 = 7.54 units per acre 


▪ Total average of lots 1, 3, 4 = 6.89 units per acre 


*The minimum lot frontage of 40 feet and the increase in density are changes 
from the original GDP approval. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 11 of 17 


 


 


5.3 Residential Design Guidelines 
 


To achieve the vision in the 51 West GDP, inclusive of varying residential types and densities, the 


following architectural design guidelines will govern residential development.  Anything not 


specifically described in these guidelines will conform with City standards. 


  



bhollar

Image







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 12 of 17 


 


5.3.1 Building Design 
o The buildings shall be placed as close to the front setback as practical to strengthen the 


street edge and promote street activation. 


o All buildings shall be designed with four-sided architectural treatment, utilizing the same 


design theme and compatible building materials. 


o The buildings shall have well-proportioned fenestrations, façade articulation and 


appropriately scaled architectural features. 


o Each building façade shall include two or more elements that provide visual interest and 


variety, such as balconies, porches, bay windows, garden walls, varied building and façade 


setbacks and varied roof designs. 


o Balconies, porches and bay windows are allowed to encroach into the front setback. 


o Facades greater than 100 feet shall consist of variations in the surface plane and roofline 


heights. 


 


5.3.2 Building Materials 
o Use quality materials that are durable and will age well. Acceptable building materials include 


brick, stone, decorative concrete masonry units, wood, vinyl and composite siding. Materials 


such as corrugated metal, Exterior Insulation and Finish System (EIFS) or aluminum siding 


can be used as accent materials, but not as the primary building material. 


o A mix of 2-4 materials and/or colors shall be used on each building facade. 


 


5.3.3 Doors and Windows 
o A minimum 20% of all facades shall provide glazing or significant architectural detailing to 


provide visual interest. 


o Street-facing facades providing direct access to first story dwelling units through individual 


entrances are encouraged. A minimum of 25% ground floor units with direct access to the 


sidewalk is preferred. 


 


5.3.4 Service Areas and Mechanicals 
o Service areas shall be integrated with the building design and screened when visible from 


public streets. 


o Loading areas, mechanical equipment or other utility hardware on the ground or building 


shall be screened from public view by plantings or decorative walls and fences with materials 


similar to the adjacent building material. 


o Rooftop mechanicals shall be screened using parapet wall extensions and/or screening 


fences on the roof using materials similar to those used on the building walls. 


o Refuse and recycling trash cans will be set in individual garages. 


  







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 13 of 17 


 


5.3.5 Landscaping and Site Treatment 
o Low level plant materials should be utilized appropriately as a buffer for parking lots and 


building utility areas from the street while maintaining visibility for public safety and 


desirable exposure, using a mix of shrubs, evergreens and various perennials and ornamental 


grasses. 


o In addition to meeting the quantitative landscaping standards in Chapter 78-603 of the 


Stoughton zoning ordinance, the following shall be met: 


➢ Climax Trees: 1 canopy tree shall be planted for every 20 residential units. 


o Landscape screening shall include a mix of evergreen and deciduous species to achieve 


effective visual screening during all seasons of the year. 


 


5.3.6 Decorative Fencing/Walls 
o Acceptable materials for constructing decorative fencing/wall include metal/aluminum, 


wood, stone, brick and wrought iron. 


o Fencing/walls will adhere to Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Sec. 78-718 – Fencing Standards 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 14 of 17 


 


6 Conceptual Landscaping / Site Design Plan 
 


Our Conceptual Landscaping Plan is provided in the Appendices. 


  







51 West – Lots 1, 3 and 4 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


September 29, 2022  Page 15 of 17 


 


7 Building Types and Themes 
 


7.1 Land Use Development Areas 
 


There are 6 general building types that are allowed within the 51 West subdivision. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Lots 1, 3 & 4 have been designated as Building Type I – Small Format Residential and Building  


  



bhollar

Image







5
1 W


e
st –


 L
o


ts 1, 3
 a


n
d


 4
 


S
to


u
g


h
to


n
, W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 


 S
ep


tem
b


er 2
9
, 2


0
2
2 


 
P


age 16
 o


f 17
 


                  
 


 


  
 


 
 


       


 


8 Elevations 



bhollar

Image







5
1 W


e
st –


 L
o


ts 1, 3
 a


n
d


 4
 


S
to


u
g


h
to


n
, W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 


 S
ep


tem
b


er 2
9
, 2


0
2
2 


 
P


age 17
 o


f 17
 


             


                 


  


9  First Floor Plan and Lower Level  



bhollar

Image



bhollar

Image







OUTLOT 2
STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT


OUTLOT 3
PARK


10' MULTIUSE PATH


PALM GRASS WAY


D
VO


R
AK


 D
R


IV
E


BL
U


E 
G


R
AS


S 
D


R
IV


E


R
U


T
LA


N
D


 D
U


N
N


 T
O


W
N


LI
N


E 
R


O
AD


OUTLOT 1


LOT 2
LOT 5LOT 6


LOT 7


LOT 8


LOT 9


LOT 10


LOT 11


LOT 12


LOT 13


LOT 14


LOT 15


LOT 1


10' MULTIUSE PATH
WEST PLAT LINE


LOT 3


LOT 4


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


20' SETBACK
20' SETBACK


N0° 09' 08"W     711.34'


N00° 09' 03"E    681.03'


N
89° 55' 41"W


    114.60'


N
86


° 1
8'


 4
2"


W
   


 1
26


.6
1'


S07° 10' 42"W
23.53'


N
89° 59' 55"E    688.90'


N
89° 55' 41"W


    485.14'


N
79° 25' 37"W


    108.83'


N00° 01' 24"W    173.16'


N00° 08' 36"W    143.60'


N00° 08' 03"E    116.21'


N
89° 55' 41"W


    158.47'


N
89° 48' 26"E    205.95'


S79° 26' 19"E    136.50'


N
79° 26' 19"W


    107.36'


N10° 43' 21"E    130.00'


P-1


P-2


P-3


P-4


P-5


P-6


P-7


P-8


P-9


P-10


P-11


P-12


P-13


P-14


P-15


P-16


P-17


P-18


P-19


P-20


P-21


P-22


P-23


P-24


P-25 P-26 P-27 P-28 P-29 P-30


P-31


P-32
P-33 P-34 P-35 P-36 P-37 P-38 42.10'


44.00'


42.50'


10' SETBACK


10' SETBACK


10' SETBACK


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' UTILITYEASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


18' TRAIL
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


SI
T


E 
 P


LA
N


Lo
ts


 1
, 3


 a
nd


 4
 D


up
le


xe
s


DRAWN BY: DWS


FN:  22-05-130


C100


DATE: 09-29-22
REVISED:


Sheet Number:


51
 W


ES
T


 C
IT


Y 
O


F 
ST


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
, D


AN
E 


CO
U


N
T


Y,
 W


IS
CO


N
SI


N


400


SCALE: 1"= 40'
(PAGE SIZE: 22x34)



AutoCAD SHX Text

U:/USER/2205130/DRAWINGS/2205130 SITE PLAN.DWG







OUTLOT 2
STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT


OUTLOT 3
PARK


10' MULTIUSE PATH


PALM GRASS WAY


D
VO


R
AK


 D
R


IV
E


BL
U


E 
G


R
AS


S
D


R
IV


E


R
U


T
LA


N
D


 D
U


N
N


 T
O


W
N


LI
N


E 
R


O
AD


OUTLOT 1


LOT 2
LOT 5LOT 6


LOT 7


LOT 8


LOT 9


LOT 10


LOT 11


LOT 12


LOT 13


LOT 14


LOT 15


LOT 1


10' MULTIUSE PATHWEST PLAT LINE


S07° 10' 42"W
23.53'


P-1


P-2


P-3


P-4


P-5


P-6


P-7


P-8


P-9


P-10


P-11


P-12


P-13


P-14


P-15


P-16


P-17


P-18


P-19


P-20


P-21


P-22


P-23


P-24


P-25 P-26 P-27 P-28 P-29 P-30


P-31


P-32
P-33 P-34 P-35 P-36 P-37 P-38 42.10'


44.00'


42.50'


10
7.


36
'


+9


+38


+83
+93


+122


+177


+206


+47


+81


+113


+143 +137


+167


+198


+222


+252


+3


+30


+81


+231


+286


+32


+79


+306


+268+74 +126 +162 +218 +252 +307 +340 +3 +35 +90 +123 +178


+261


8" SANITARY SEWER


8" WATER MAIN


8"
 W


AT
ER


 M
AI


N
8"


 S
AN


IT
AR


Y 
SE


W
ER


O
VE


R
AL


L 
U


T
IL


IT
Y 


 P
LA


N


DRAWN BY: DWS


FN:  22-05-130


1 of 1


DATE: 09-29-22
REVISED:


Sheet Number:


400


SCALE: 1"= 40'
(PAGE SIZE: 22x34)


Lo
ts


 1
, 3


 a
nd


 4
 D


up
le


xe
s


51
 W


ES
T


 C
IT


Y 
O


F 
ST


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
, D


AN
E 


CO
U


N
T


Y,
 W


IS
CO


N
SI


N



AutoCAD SHX Text

U:/USER/2203101/DRAWINGS/2203101 SITE.DWG







OUTLOT 2
STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT


OUTLOT 3
PARK


10' MULTIUSE PATH


PALM GRASS WAY


D
VO


R
AK


 D
R


IV
E


BL
U


E 
G


R
AS


S 
D


R
IV


E


R
U


T
LA


N
D


 D
U


N
N


 T
O


W
N


LI
N


E 
R


O
AD


OUTLOT 1


LOT 2
LOT 5LOT 6


LOT 7


LOT 8


LOT 9


LOT 10


LOT 11


LOT 12


LOT 13


LOT 14


LOT 15


LOT 3


LOT 4


LOT 1


10' MULTIUSE PATH
WEST PLAT LINE


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


20' SETBACK


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


20' SETBACK
20' SETBACK


S07° 10' 42"W
23.53'


P-1


P-2


P-3


P-4


P-5


P-6


P-7


P-8


P-9


P-10


P-11


P-12


P-13


P-14


P-15


P-16


P-17


P-18


P-19


P-20


P-21


P-22


P-23


P-24


P-25 P-26 P-27 P-28 P-29 P-30


P-31


P-32
P-33 P-34 P-35 P-36 P-37 P-38 42.10'


44.00'


42.50'


10' SETBACK


10' SETBACK


10' SETBACK


10
7.


36
'


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' UTILITYEASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


18' TRAIL
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY EASEMENT


LA
N


D
SC


AP
E 


 P
LA


N


Lo
ts


 1
, 3


 a
nd


 4
 D


up
le


xe
s


DRAWN BY: DWS


FN:  22-05-130


L100


DATE: 09-29-22
REVISED:


Sheet Number:


51
 W


ES
T


 C
IT


Y 
O


F 
ST


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
, D


AN
E 


CO
U


N
T


Y,
 W


IS
CO


N
SI


N


400


SCALE: 1"= 40'
(PAGE SIZE: 22x34)



AutoCAD SHX Text

U:/USER/2203101/DRAWINGS/2203101 SITE.DWG







[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON       RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 


September 30, 2022 
 
AY Development LLC 
1824 Waldorf Blvd, Unit 118 
Madison, WI.  53719 
 
 
Dear Applicant: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed Planned Development (PD) – General Development Plan 
for Lots 1, 3 and 4 within the 51 West Development  (Plans submitted 9/29/22)  A hybrid public 
hearing is scheduled for October 10, 2022 of which you will receive notice.  You and/or your 
representative will need to attend the meeting to present materials and answer questions.  The 
meeting will be held in person with a Zoom option.  The following items are identified for your 
review.   
 
1. General Development Plan requirements per zoning code section 78-914(7) are as follows: 


A. A location map of the subject property as depicted on the planned land use map shall be 
provided.  Provided  


B. A map of subject property showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the 
subject property, together with the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on 
said map including indication of current zoning of subject property.  Done by staff 


C. A general description of the general development plan including: 
a. General project themes and images; Provided 
b. The general mix of dwelling units and/or land uses; Zero Lot Line Duplexes 


proposed 
c. Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described 


by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio; 
Provided 


d. General treatment of natural resources; N/A 
e. General relationship to nearby properties and streets; Provided 
f. The general relationship of the project to the comprehensive plan.  Provided 
g. A statement of rationale as to why the PD zoning is proposed which identifies 


barriers the applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard zoning 
districts and opportunities for community betterment the applicant suggests are 
available through the proposed PD zoning; Provided 


h. A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met and which will be 
more than met by the proposed PD and the locations in which they apply and a 
complete list of zoning standards which will be more than met by the proposed 
PD and the location in which they apply shall be identified, as compared with 
the most comparable zoning district.  Essentially, the purpose of this listing 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





[- 2 -] 


shall be to provide the plan commission with information necessary to 
determine the relative merits of the project concerning private benefit versus 
public benefit and about the mitigation of potentially adverse impacts created 
by design flexibility. Provided 


i. A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the
requirements of the most comparable zoning district, in the following order:


a) Land use exemptions: N/A
b) Density and intensity exemptions: See below
c) Bulk exemptions: See below
d) Landscaping exceptions: N/A
e) Parking and loading requirements exceptions: N/A


The following is the list of requested exceptions based on the Two Family 
Residential District (TR-6): 


• Minimum lot frontage of 40 feet;
• Minimum rear building setback = 20 feet
• Unit allowance vs 6 units per acre (Density):


- Lot 1 = 6.86 units per acre
- Lot 3 = 6.59 units per acre
- Lot 4 = 7.54 units per acre
- Total average of lots 1, 3, 4 = 6.89 units per acre


*The minimum lot frontage of 40 feet and the increase in density are changes
from the original GDP approval.


D. A general development plan drawing shall be provided with at least the following
information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for approval:


a. A conceptual site drawing of the general land use layout and the general
location of major public streets and/or private drives;  Provided


b. Location of recreational and open spaces areas and facilities; Parks and trails
shown


c. Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate area
of all development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape
surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans
required by the plan commission or common council; and Landscape surface
area required is 50% per lot.


E. A general conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate
locations of foundation, street, yard, paving and landscaping.   Provided – A more
detailed plan will be necessary at the SIP stage.  Vision triangles at intersections
and driveways will need to meet code.


F. A general signage plan for the project, including all project identification signs and
concepts for public fixtures and signs, such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or common
practices. N/A







[- 3 -] 


G. Written justification for the proposed planned development. The applicant shall use the
requirements of the zoning map amendment procedure (subsections 78.903(4) (c) 1
through 3) to develop said written justification.


The process for review and approval of the GDP shall be identical to that for zoning
map amendments per section 78-903 of this chapter and (if land is to be divided) to
that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision per the Municipal Code. Section 78-
903 used.


All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final
common council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall
be permitted. The common council may extend this five years period by up to five
additional years via a majority vote following a public hearing. Completed portions of
the PD/GDP shall retain the PD/GDP status.


2. A utility plan is necessary showing locations for hydrants, water, electric and sewer services.
Stoughton Utilities will need to determine if the size of water and sewer mains will
accommodate the increase in density.  Provided


3. The parkland dedication for the 51 West Development will need to be evaluated relative to the
increase in density.  We believe there is ample parkland to cover this increase in density.


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


Sincerely, 
City of Stoughton 


Michael P. Stacey 


Michael P. Stacey 
Zoning Administrator 


s:\planning\developments\51 west - dvorak\lot 1-3-4 pd - july 22\gdp 9.12.22\lot 1, 3, 4 gdp review 22.doc



https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-903AMOFZOMA










\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\101022\PC Info\314 w. Main Street Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  October 3, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the October 10, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting. 
 
Request by Todd Nelson for site plan amendments at 314 W. Main Street.  (Tabled on August 
8, 2022)   
This request was tabled on August 8, 2022 to allow the owners to come to an agreement on the new 
access easement.  We have the recorded document acknowledging the new agreement.  This request 
is for to the abandonment of the access easement along the east side of 314 W. Main Street for the 
adjacent property owner access to Highway 51.  This easement is now eliminated and a new 
easement is established to the rear or north side of the site to Prairie Street.  This will allow more 
site room for the retention basin and provide a safer access to both sites.  The amended plan 
includes moving the retention basin and a few landscape plantings.  The resolution and application 
information are provided.  Plan Commission approval is necessary. 
 
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 


Approving an amended site plan at 314 W. Main Street, Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request  - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 16 - 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
October 10, 2022 


RECITALS 
 


A. Todd Nelson (the “Applicant”) is seeking site plan approval to eliminate the access to US 
Highway 51 and move the retention basin and landscape plantings at 314 W. Main Street, 
Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Property”). 
 


B. The Property is zoned Planned Development and will be used for multi-family residential which 
is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.   
 


C. Curb-gutter and public sidewalk will need to be installed to City standards at the Highway 51 
access point. 


 
D. The City Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the proposed site plan at their regular 


October 10, 2022 meeting and found that the plan meets the intent of the Comprehensive Plan 
and zoning ordinance requirements. 


 
  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves the site plan amendment for 314 W. 
Main Street, Stoughton, WI, as presented. 


 
   
                                             
Tim Swadley    Date 
Chair 
 


 
    
   
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\PC Resolutions 2022\314 W. Main Street Site Plan 16-22.doc 







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications\Zoning Site Plan Review APP.doc


City of Stoughton Application for Site Plan Review and Approval (Requirements 
per Section 78-908) 


Applicant Name: 314 W. Main LLC / Todd Nelson


Applicant Address: 710 Clyde Street, Stoughton


Applicant Phone and Email: 669.1554  and  75nelson@gmail.com


 Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): _____________________________________ 


Property Owner Phone: __________________________________________________________ 


Subject Property Address: 314 W. Main Street 


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application for a 
site plan review and by the City to process said application. Part II is to be used by the Applicant to 
submit a complete application; Parts I - III are to be used by the City when processing said application. 


I. Record of Administrative Procedures for City Use


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: 6/21/2022 


II Application Submittal Packet Requirements for Applicants Use 


Prior to submitting the final complete application as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the Applicant shall 
submit an initial draft application packet for staff review followed by one revised final application packet based 
upon staff review and comments. The application shall include the following: 


 (a) A written description of the intended use describing in reasonable detail the
following: 
 Existing zoning district(s) (and proposed zoning district(s) if different).


 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation(s).


 Current land uses present on the subject property.


 Proposed land uses for the subject property (per Section 78-206).


 Projected number of residents, employees, and daily customers.


 Proposed amount of dwelling units, floor area, impervious surface area, and landscape
surface area, and resulting site density, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio, and
landscape surface area ratio.


 Operational considerations relating to hours of operation, projected normal and peak
water usage, sanitary sewer or septic loadings, and traffic generation.


 Operational considerations relating to potential nuisance creation pertaining to
noncompliance with the performance standards addressed in Article VII (Sections 78-
701 through 721) including: street access, traffic visibility, parking, loading, exterior
storage, exterior lighting, vibration, noise, air pollution, odor, electromagnetic radiation,
glare and heat, fire and explosion, toxic or noxious materials, waste materials, drainage,
and hazardous materials.


 If no nuisances will be created (as indicated by complete and continuous compliance
with the provisions of Article VII), then include the statement "The proposed
development shall comply with all requirements of Article VII".


 Exterior building and fencing materials (Sections 78-716 and 78-718).







Please consider this email as an official request to be placed on the next plan commission 
agenda to review the updated site plan showing access to the neighbors back garage by passage 
through the property located at 314 W. Main St.  We believe vacating the easement on the 
property located 314 W. Main St. along the eastern property line and granting access through the 
property is best for all parties involved.  It offers a safer entrance and exit path for the neighbor, 
the city loses an undesirable ingress/egress point on busy Main St. and allows a bit more room 
for the developer to construct landscaping and to properly manage the storm water basin.   


Please note that both an updated landscaping plan and an updated site plan showing the proposed 
new easement has been delivered to your office today (7/22/22).  The updated landscaping plan 
shows the following changes. 


1) A relocation of the common bench area to the north


2) A relocation of one maple tree to the north


3) Moving the storm water pond 4 +/- feet to the east to allow more room between the pond and
the building.


4) Adding seed and mulch to the proposed vacant driveway easement area.


 Based on our engineer's area measurements we calculated the following: 


· North Easement additional paved area=820 sq ft


· East existing easement/gravel pavement (10' wide) reduction=-942 sq ft


· North Parking Lot =4223 sq ft


· Buildings= 5884 sq ft


· Parking lot sidewalks=418 Sq ft


· South Entrance Sidewalks=142 sq ft


Total Paved Area=10545 sq ft 


% lot paved= 10545 sq ft/22272 sq ft=47.3% pave lot  ratio 


As always thank you for the guidance the City of Stoughton provides. 


Respectfully submitted, Todd Nelson 















ORIGINAL  APPROVED LANDSCAPE PLAN







S 
D


iv
is


io
n 


St


Mai n
-P


ag
e


Ct


W Washington St


t


S 
W


at
er


 S
t


ai
rie


 S
t


S 
M


ad
is


on
 S


t


W Jefferson St


 St







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
08/08/22 
Page 2 of 5 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  080822.docx 


 


Robinson questioned if the Fire Department had reviewed the site plan.  Stacey stated 
they have and the applicant added the additional access to Oak Opening Drive for 
better emergency access per their recommendation. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the General 
Development Plan as presented, 2nd by Caravello.   
 
Fred Van Buren, applicant, questioned if the approval is for increasing the density to 
20 units.  Mayor Swadley stated the recommendation is for 20 units. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 


6. New signage within the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District at 135 W. 
Main Street.  
Mayor Swadley introduced the request.  
 
Stacey gave an overview of the request. 
 
Motion by Robinson to approve the signage as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 


7. Amended site plan for 314 W. Main Street. 
Mayor Swadley introduced the request. 
 
Amy Hartsough and Dennis Huvila, 311 W. Washington Street explained they only 
had a verbal agreement with Todd Nelson to change the access easement from the 
Main Street to Prairie Street.  They had an attorney draft an access easement 
document for recording.  However, at this point they have no signed agreement and 
have not heard back from Todd Nelson.  Todd Nelson eliminated their access to Main 
Street without a signed agreement.  They are still willing to work with Todd Nelson to 
change the access to Prairie Street. 
 
The Commission discussed options. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to postpone this request until an access agreement has been 
worked out, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


8. Site plan for Water Street Tavern, 324 S. Water Street. 
Mayor Swadley introduced the request. 
 
Stacey explained the intent of the request. 
 



mstacey

Highlight

















































		ADP6A45.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, August 8, 2022 at 6:00 pm Hybrid Meeting












\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\101022\PC Info\317 S Division Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  October 3, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the October 10, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting. 
 
Façade Improvements at 317 S. Division Street. 
This property is within the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District, which requires approval for 
exterior improvements.  Trucks entering the alley from Division Street have damage this building 
several times.  The owner is proposing to install a bollard to protect the building at the alley 
entrance.  The Public Works Committee will need to review/approve the bollard in the right of way.  
This proposal is for signage, front door improvements and additional façade improvements as 
outlined in the application.  The resolution, application information, and staff review are provided.  
Plan Commission approval is necessary. 
 
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 


Approving façade and building entry improvements at 317 S. Division Street, Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request  - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 17 - 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
October 10, 2022 


RECITALS 
 


A. Pam Kosanovich (the “Applicant”) is seeking approval for façade improvements at 317 S. 
Division Street, Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Property”). 
 


B. The Property is zoned Central Business and is used for commercial on the main floor and 
residential in the upper floor which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.   
 


C. The proposed bollard will need to be approved by the Public Works Committee for placement in 
the right-of-way. 


 
D. The City Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the proposed façade improvements including 


signage and moving the front access door to face Division Street at their regular October 10, 
2022 meeting and found that the plan meets the intent of the Comprehensive Plan and zoning 
ordinance requirements. 


 
  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves the façade improvements for 317 S. 
Division Street, Stoughton, WI, as presented. 


 
   
                                             
Tim Swadley    Date 
Chair 
 


 
    
   
    
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\PC Resolutions 2022\317 S. Division Street Site Plan 17-22.doc 







City of Stoughton Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District Procedures per
Section 78-517


Applicant Name: ______________________________________________________________


Applicant Address: ____________________________________________________________


Applicant Phone and Email: _____________________________________________________


Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): ___________________________________


Property Owner Phone and Email: ________________________________________________


Subject Property Address: ______________________________________________________


Prior to submitting the final application with the Zoning Administrator, the Applicant shall submit
an initial draft application for staff review at least 3 weeks prior to a Planning Commission meeting,
followed by one revised draft final application packet if necessary based upon staff review or staff
comments. Final application materials are required to be submitted at least 2 weeks prior to a Plan
Commission meeting.


Initial Packet


(1 electronic 11 x 17 copy of plans to Zoning Administrator) Date: ____________


Final Packet (if necessary)


(1 electronic 11 x 17 copy of plans to Zoning Administrator) Date: ____________


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application for
a downtown design overlay zoning review and by the City to process said application. Follow specific
requirements depending on the type of proposal as follows:


Maintenance: Maintenance shall be subject to approval by the Zoning Administrator. Maintenance
includes preserving or repairing the existing exterior with the same colors, finishes or materials and
may require a building/zoning permit and fee.


Renovations: Renovations are subject to Plan Commission approval as set forth in zoning code
section 78-517. Renovations include a change in appearance of a structure such as component or
signage substitution; painting, roofing, siding with different colors, finishes or materials. Applications
for renovation review shall be accompanied by all of the following:


1. A building/zoning permit application (if required).


2. A clear depiction of the existing appearance of the property including color photographs
including scaled or fully dimensioned drawings of existing components such as windows,
doors, railings, fencing or other site components and detailed building elevations proposed
for alteration or replacement.



Pamela J. Kosanovich



226 East Washington Street, Stoughton, WI 53589



208-610-2437   melakosa@outlook.com 



same



317 South Division Street, Stoughton, WI 53589



9-26-22



9-26-22







Map data ©2022 50 ft 


317 S Division St







317 South Division Street


Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589


Proposed Renovation 9-22-22







Damage Repair


1. Damage from the Sysco truck compromised the side wall, top corner, brick, concrete pad and top panel
under the second story bay window


2. Repairs will also need to be done the structure under the wood facing of corner and front above the door
and windows.


3. At this time we will also renovate the front façade since much of it needs repair and we would like to
improve the front corner entry.


4. The current corner entry is not original and is not safe. When exiting the building it faces the person out
toward the alley and because it is a solid wall you cannot see the oncoming traffic in the alley.


5. When we modify the entrance our goal is to provide visibility to the alley above a metal railing and a
corner post to support the damaged corner support.


6. In doing so we want to use cast iron railing panels, a cast iron corner post, a vintage inspired front door
and we also want to install a bollard near the curb to prevent the drivers to cut the corner.


7. Since our bar has a nautical theme we would like to have a timber frame company fabricate metal plates
to cover the corner and at each end of the front.  This we hope will protect the corner because it has
been hit many times.







Cosmetic Intentions


1. Wood panels with raised 1x3 frames will replace the sections of the front façade.


2. Using contrast colors that compliment the brick color and black accents will be a big improvement.


3. The corbels under the second story bay window will need to be replaced and we would like to incorporate


pilasters between the windows for added accents.  The corner metal plates will be matte black (They


appear to be lighter in our illustration but that is to show they are metal.  They will be matte black)


4. We want to replace all the second story windows with black framed windows to give a vintage look.


Then we want to replace all the windows on the alley side with the same windows on the second floor.


5. Remodeling the coach house and the sun porch on the back will have to be later next spring.


6. We have an issue on the second floor in the kitchen area and we are hoping to find some resolution.


China King’s fryer hoods are directly under our window placement and the one existing window is very


charred, so we have spoke to the fire department and we have spoke to them directly so we are hoping


come up with the best solution.







Image capture: Aug 2018 © 2022 Google



https://www.google.com/streetview





Photos, Drawings and Sketches


Current Façade 







Proposed Visualization 







Proposed Colors







Rough Sketches With Measurements







Property Layout







Proposed New Entrance Layout







Wrought Iron Column


• Custom made to spec 10.5”high







Metal Bollard
At Alley Entrance







Railing Panels







Pilasters PVC 8” Wide







Decorative Corbels







Cast Iron Hand Rail for Railing







Preliminary Window Specs







Sign Design







Actual Unpainted Sign Bracket


• Will be matte black







Sign Artwork


• Sign will be solid wood


• With CNC engraving


• Painted and sealed


• Will be stationary (no swing)


• Sign Dimensions 20” high 38” wide


• We will install two small spotlights


on bay window to light sign







2 Proposed Spot Light
To be installed on bay window to highlight sign







CITY OF STOUGHTON 


DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 


BUILDING/ZONING PERMIT APPLICATION 
 


Date of Application ________________________________________________________________________ 
 


Applicant Name __________________________________________ Phone___________________________ 
 


Applicant Email___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 


Owners Name (other than applicant) ___________________________________ Phone_________________ 
 


Subject Property Address __________________________________________________________________ 


   


Permit for ________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


Proposed use(s) ___________________________________________________________________________  


 


Project area for new structures and additions (sq. ft.) ___________________________________________ 


 


*Estimated building construction cost including labor____________________________________________  


Estimated electric construction cost including labor______________________________________________  


Estimated plumbing construction cost including labor____________________________________________  


Estimated hvac construction cost including labor________________________________________________ 


Estimated zoning project cost (signage, fencing, etc...) ___________________________________________  
*Do not include costs related to flooring, carpeting or painting. 


 


Contractor Information:  
 


Construction_________________________ Phone#______________________Lic#_____________________ 


 


Electrical____________________________ Phone#______________________Lic#_____________________ 


 


Plumbing____________________________ Phone#______________________Lic#_____________________ 


 


HVAC_______________________________Phone#______________________Lic#_____________________ 


 


Cautionary Statement to Owners Obtaining Building Permits 


Section 101.65 (1r) of the Wisconsin Statutes requires municipalities that enforce the Uniform Dwelling Code 


to provide an owner who applies for a building permit with a statement advising the owner that: 


 


If the owner hires a contractor to perform work under the building permit and the contractor is not bonded or 


insured as required under Section 101.654(2)(a), the following consequences might occur: 


The owner may be held liable for any bodily injury to or death of others or for any damage to the property of 


others that arises out of the work performed under this building permit or that is caused by any negligence by 


the contractor that occurs in connection with the work performed under this building permit. 


The owner may not be able to collect from the contractor, damages for any loss sustained by the owner because 


of a violation by the contractor of the one and two-family dwelling code or an ordinance enacted under sub. 


(1)(a), because of any bodily injury to or death of others or damage to property of others that arises out of the 


work performed under this building permit or because of any bodily injury to or death of others or damage to 


property of others that is caused by any negligence by the contractor that occurs in connection with the work 


performed under this building permit. 







 


Cautionary Statement to Contractors for Projects Involving Buildings Built Before 1978 


If this project is in a dwelling or child-occupied facility, built before 1978, and disturbs 6 sq. ft. or more of paint 


per room, 20 sq. ft. or more of exterior paint, or involves windows, then the requirements of Chapter DHS 163 


requiring Lead-Safe Renovation Training and Certification apply.  Call (608)266-6876 or go to 


http://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/lead/wilsr.htm 


 


Wetlands Notice to Permit Applicants 


"You are responsible for complying with state and federal laws concerning construction near or on wetlands, 


lakes, and streams.  Wetlands that are not associated with open water can be difficult to identify.  Failure to 


comply may result in removal or modification of construction that violates the law or other penalties or costs.  


For more information, visit the Department of Natural Resources wetlands identification web page:  


(https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/wetlands/delineation.html) or contact a department of Natural Resources service 


center." 


 


Additional Responsibilities for Owners with Projects Disturbing One or More Acres of Soil 


I understand that this project is subject to Chapter NR 151 regarding additional erosion control and stormwater 


management and will comply with those standards. 


 


Additional Responsibilities for Property Owners 


The owner is responsible to provide the location of lot stakes onsite for many projects to confirm setbacks 


including but not limited to: prior to pouring footings; new construction; building addition; fencing; accessory 


structures.  Additionally, the owner is responsible to call the building inspector for required inspections such as: 


Footings (prior to pouring); electrical; plumbing; HVAC; insulation; framing.  Call the Building Inspector at 


608-873-7626 if you are unsure what inspections are required. 


 
IF APPLICABLE, A PLAN MUST BE SUBMITTED SHOWING LOT LINES AND ALL DIMENSIONS OF 


THE PROJECT.  NO WORK SHALL BEGIN WITHOUT A BUILDING PERMIT.  FEES ARE DOUBLED FOR 


ANY WORK THAT HAS BEGUN WITHOUT A PERMIT.   


 


BY SIGNING THIS APPLICATION, YOU ARE AGREEING TO ALLOW BUILDING INPSECTION AND 


ZONING STAFF TO ENTER THE PROPERTY TO PERFORM ALL INSPECTIONS.  IT IS UNDERSTOOD, 


PERMISSION WILL NEED TO BE GRANTED TO ENTER ANY STRUCTURE TO PERFORM 


INSPECTIONS WHICH INCLUDES A REQUEST BY THE APPLICANT OR OWNER FOR AN INSPECTION.   


 


ANY QUESTIONS, CALL THE BUILDING INSPECTOR AT 608-873-7626 OR ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 


AT 608-646-0421.  THERE IS ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AT 


WWW.CITYOFSTOUGHTON.COM/PLANNING 


 


 


Owner/Contractor Signature___________________________________________ Date___________________ 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 



Pamela Kosanovich







CITY OF STOUGHTON     RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT  DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589   (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning    fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 
 


September 27, 2022 
 
Pamela Kosanovich 
226 E. Washington Street 
Stoughton, WI.  53589 
 
 
Dear Ms. Kosanovich: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed front façade improvements at 317 S. Division Street.  
Design review according to the downtown design overlay zoning district requirements are 
outlined below.  This request is planned for review/approval at the October 10, 2022 Plan 
Commission meeting of which you will receive notice.  You and/or your representative are 
required to attend the meeting to present your project and answer questions.  The meeting will be 
hybrid meaning it will be in person and have a Zoom option.  Any work proposed in the right-of-
way such as the bollard will need to be approved by Public Works. 
 
1. The property at 317 S. Division Street is zoned CB – Central Business and is within the 


Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District (DDOZD).  The building is not listed as a 
Local Landmark and is not subject to Landmarks Commission review.  The building 
complies with the standards of section 78-517 and shall follow the design standards of 
section 78-517(7).   
 
The façade improvements include the replacement of the second story windows at the 
front and alley side of the building; modification of the front entry; replacement of 
corbels under the second story bay window with wood pilasters; wood 1x3 framed 
panels added to replace sections of the front façade; repair of damaged areas of the 
building and new projecting signage. 
 


2. Section 78-517 (1), (2) and (4) states: 
(1) Purpose. This district is intended to preserve and enhance the aesthetic qualities of the 


downtown, and retain a consistent and visually pleasing image for the downtown area.  


(2) Boundaries. This district has the same boundaries as the Main Street Commercial 
Historic District as listed on the National Register of Historic Places, as depicted on the 
overlay districts zoning map.  


(4) Application of regulations. 
(a) Except as expressly provided otherwise in this section, the regulations of this 


section apply to all maintenance, renovation, structural projects and demolition 
within the district.  



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





(b) This section does not apply to any building or improvement designated as a local 
landmark or located within a historic district established pursuant to chapter 38 of 
this Code.  


(c) This section does not apply to the demolition of a building or structure that has been 
ordered to be razed by a court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 
66.0413(2).  


(d) This section does apply to the demolition of a building or structure ordered razed by 
the building inspector pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0413(1), and neither the owner, 
the city nor any city official may demolish a building pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 
66.0413 without first obtaining approval pursuant to this section.  


 
3. Section 78-517 (5)(b) states, Procedural requirements and standards for approval. 


(b)  Renovation. Renovation shall be subject to approval by the plan commission. The plan 
commission shall approve an application for renovation if the proposed renovation will 
conform to the standards set forth in section 78-517(7). Applications for approval of 
renovation shall be made to the zoning administrator, and shall be accompanied by all 
of the following:  
1. The building permit application if such an application is required.  Provided 
2. A clear depiction of the existing appearance of the property including clear color 


photographs. Scaled or fully dimensioned drawings of existing components such 
as windows, doors, railings, fencing or other site components, and/or detailed 
building elevations which are proposed for alteration or replacement are 
recommended and may be required by the city.  Provided 


3. A clear depiction of the proposed appearance of the property including paint 
charts, promotional brochures, and/or clear color photographs of replacement 
architectural components. Scaled or fully dimensioned drawings of proposed 
components such as windows, doors, railings, fencing or other site components, 
and/or detailed building elevations which are proposed for alteration or 
replacement are recommended and may be required by the city.  Provided 


4. A clear written description of the proposed modification, including a complete 
listing of proposed components, materials, and colors.  Provided 


5. A clear written explanation regarding how the proposed alteration will conform 
to section 78-517(7) with direct reference to each applicable design standard.  As 
outlined below. 


 
4. Section 78-517(7) states, in part, related to this request:   


 
Design standards. Renovation and structural projects shall conform to the design standards in 
this section that the plan commission determines are applicable to the application. 
 
(d) Horizontal bands. Wherever possible, existing horizontal bands (such as storefront 


cornice or lintel and transom windows) shall be retained and uncovered; owners shall 
move or remove large signs that may cover the banding to allow the horizontal elements 
to be expressed. When horizontal rhythms are found, horizontal elements that also exist 
in buildings to either side of the subject building shall be retained. Existing transom 
windows shall not be filled with brick, wood or other materials. If original building 







design called for transom windows that are now missing, they shall be visually recreated. 
If the storefront cornice or lintel is missing, a horizontal division shall be achieved by 
replacing or simulating the cornice and/or incorporating it in the signboard.  The plan 
appears to meet this requirement. 


 
(f) Vertical rhythms. Wherever possible, the floor heights on main facades shall appear 


visually in proportion to those of adjoining buildings. The rhythm of the ground floor 
shall harmonize with the rhythm of upper floors. The vertical pattern of exterior building 
elements formed by patterns of building openings for windows and doors, and related 
elements such as sills, headers, transoms, cornices and sign bands shall be compatible in 
design and elevation with those of existing buildings in the immediate area. Front and 
secondary doorways/entries, porches and steps present at the time the building was 
originally constructed shall be retained; except as required to meet accessibility 
standards. Non-commercial style doors such as solid doors, half-glazed doors, "colonial 
style" doors, and highly decorative doors are not permitted in commercial applications. 
Storm doors are prohibited because they make access difficult.  


 
Window features, including lintels, sills, architraves, shutters, cornice/pediments, hoods 
and hardware, shall be maintained where possible, or replaced with visually matching 
features and materials. Replicating missing window features (such as hoods) in sheet 
metal, fiberglass, or wood shall be permitted. If window features cannot be replaced or 
replicated, at least the shape of the window opening shall be retained and expressed. 
Frames for new windows shall be divided to match original window divisions or shall be 
based on divisions typical to that building type. Within block-faces where windows are 
consistently proportioned, structural projects shall maintain this proportion and spacing 
of windows.  The façade has had previous work and we believe the proposed changes 
enhance the historic look of the building. 


(g) Rhythm/relationship of solids and voids. The majority of the front wall surface of the first 
floor shall be window area. Large storefront windows shall be maintained; do not block 
up the storefront to install smaller windows. Storefront spandrels shall be as low as 
possible; do not make the spandrel higher than originally designed and as a result infill 
the window opening. Spandrel design shall relate to the architectural style of the building; 
a brick spandrel shall match the masonry of the building and a wood spandrel shall 
include stiles and rails at the top, bottom and sides. Existing columns shall be left intact 
and included in the overall design of framing for the shopfront.  


 
Maintain the rhythm of solids and voids in upper stories; the surface of the upper floors 
shall bear a repeated solid-void relationship, with windows spaced evenly in the wall. Do 
not change the size of windows or cover over the upper facade. Windows, including 
transom windows, shall not be painted or filled with brick, wood or other materials. 
Where old sash will be replaced with new sash, replacement shall be made with sash of 
the same size and appearance rather than blocking part of the window opening and 
therefore changing its proportion.   


The window locations are not changing and the front door is being modified to face 
west instead of angled toward the alley for safety reasons.   







(i) Exterior materials. In any renovation work, preserving the downtown quality and 
character shall be given the highest priority. Therefore, to protect the distinctive quality 
and character of an existing building, any new materials used shall match as closely as 
possible either the existing materials or the materials used at the time the building was 
originally constructed. When the cost or availability of materials that match original 
materials make their use prohibitive, and when alternate materials can visually match 
original materials, the use of alternate materials shall be permitted. The uniform identity 
created by the repeated use of masonry as the primary building material is very important 
to retain. As a rule, new buildings shall be constructed with street-facing facades of brick 
or stone. If the majority of street-facing facades within the block-face are constructed 
with siding (see below), then siding shall be permitted. On a site-specific basis, the trim 
materials of existing buildings to either side of the building being designed shall be 
reflected in the design. In addition:  


1. Masonry. Stone or brick facing shall be of even coloration and consistent size. Cinder 
block, concrete block, concrete slab, or concrete panel shall not be permitted on street-
facing facades.  Existing brick remains the same. 


2. Siding. Wood or thin board textured vinyl or textured metal clapboard siding may be 
appropriate, particularly if the proposed non-masonry exterior was originally used on the 
building. In certain instances, clapboard or board and batten may be in keeping with the 
general design theme. Asphalt shingle siding, rough-sawn shake siding or diagonal wood 
sidings shall not be permitted. Wood panels with raised frames are proposed. 


3. EIFS. Exterior insulation and finish systems (EIFS) such as Dryvit shall not be permitted. 
Stucco shall not be permitted for structural projects and shall only be permitted for 
renovations if used at the time the building was originally constructed.  N/A 


4. Glazing (glass). Clear or slightly tinted glass or related glazing material shall be used. 
Mirrored glass, smoked glass, or heavily tinted glass shall not be permitted.  Clear glass 
is expected. 


 
(j) Exterior surfaces. Appurtenances (accessories): Exterior surface appurtenances shall be 


compatible with those of existing buildings in the immediate area. In addition:  
1. Traditional storefront design (characterized by strong horizontal and vertical 


rhythms formed by building openings, storefront columns, storefront cornices, upper 
cornices, kickplates, signbands, large display windows, and transom windows) shall 
be employed for all buildings.  


2. Throughout the district, cluttering street-facing facades with unnecessary signs, 
brackets, wiring, meter boxes, antennae, gutters, downspouts and other 
appurtenances is prohibited. Where necessary, such features shall be colored so as to 
blend in, rather than contrast, with the immediately adjacent building exterior. 
Extraneous ornamentation which is inconsistent with buildings within the immediate 
area is also prohibited.  


 We believe the proposed improvements meet the intent of this section. 
 


(l) Exterior colors. Colors shall relate in a positive way to the existing materials found on 
the facade (especially the masonry), and to existing elements, such as signs or awnings. 
Clean the exterior surfaces with the gentlest means possible, such as light washing with 
light pressure (sandblasting destroys the brick by prematurely weathering and eroding its 







surface). When the surface to be painted has a quantity of three-dimensional detail, use 
light or mid-range color values, rather than extremely dark colors, so the details are not 
hidden. When in doubt on an appropriate palette, use shades of one color with one 
highlight color. When choosing colors, take into account the position of the building in 
relation to sunlight. Exterior colors for structures and appurtenances including fixtures 
and signs shall be compatible and harmonious with those of existing buildings in the 
immediate area. Specifically, throughout the district:  
1. High gloss paints, lacquers, varnishes or other "shiny" non-glazing surfaces shall not 


be used.  Compliant 
2. Facade color combination schemes shall be limited to no more than three different 


colors for each structure on a property. (Varying shades, tints or intensities of a color 
shall count as a different color for this purpose.)  3 colors proposed 


3. Facade color schemes shall be used consistently throughout the property, including 
on both the upper and lower portions of buildings, and on all facades of a building or 
structure.  Compliant 


 
(m) Exterior lighting. Throughout the district, on-site exterior lighting shall be compatible 


and harmonious with existing lighting in the immediate area. Specifically:  
1. Pedestrian lighting: The design, color, height, location and light quality of on-site 


pedestrian lighting shall be consistent with existing pedestrian lighting fixtures.  
2. Additional lighting standards are found in section 78-707.  


Signage lighting cannot be over 0.5 footcandles at the property line and the 
lighting cannot cause any distraction for motorists. 


 
(n) Signage. Signs shall be placed at the top of the storefront; painted on the window itself; 


hanging over the sidewalk; or on the edge of an awning.  
1. Coordinate the placement of signage with adjacent storefronts to avoid visual 


confusion. Large hanging plastic signs and oversized signs are prohibited.  
2. Signage placed over features on the second story facade are prohibited.  
3. Select clear, simple lettering styles for easy readability.  
4. Consider the color of the building and of neighboring buildings when determining 


sign color.  
5. Select sign colors that provide contrast between letters and background: a dark 


background with lighter colored letters is most easily perceived by the human eye.  
6. Where possible, signs shall reflect an individual business message rather than 


advertise a nationally-franchised product.  
7. There are additional signage requirements in article VIII.  


 Projecting signage must be firmly attached to the building and cannot swing on 
chains. 


 
5. Once approved, a building permit will be necessary for exterior and interior work including 


signage but not for painting. 
 
 
 
 







If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
s:\planning\property log folder\317 s division street\ddozd review 9.27.22\design review letter 9-2022.doc 
  





		Date_of_Application: 9-26-22

		Applicant_Name: Pamela J Kosanovich

		Phone: 208-610-2437

		Applicant_Email: melakosa@outlook.com

		Owners_Name_other_than_applicant: 

		Phone0: 

		Subject_Property_Address: 317 South Division

		Permit_for: Repairing front facade of building

		Proposed_uses: Bar /Tavern

		Project_area_for_new_structures_and_additions_sq_f:  2,500

		Estimated_building_construction_cost_including_lab: $27,000

		Estimated_electric_construction_cost_including_lab: $300

		Estimated_plumbing_construction_cost_including_lab: 

		Estimated_hvac_construction_cost_including_labor: 

		Estimated_zoning_project_cost_signage_fencing_etc: $550 for sign and installation

		Construction: CR Custom Construction

		Phone1: 608-358-0539

		Textfield: DC-112001185

		Electrical: Ultimate Power and Electric

		Phone2: 608-446-2257

		Plumbing: 

		Phone3: 

		HVAC: 

		Phone4: 

		Text1: 

		Text2: 

		Text3: 

		OwnerContractor_Signature: 

		Date: 2-26-22








\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\101022\PC Info\Mobile Tower Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  October 3, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the October 10, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting. 
 
Proposed zoning ordinance to amend sections 78-015, 78-105 and Appendix C, 
repealing and recreating section 78-206(7)(c) to Chapter 78, Stoughton Code of 
Ordinances. 
As discussed last month, a public hearing has been set for October 10, 2022 to amend the zoning 
code to allow mobile service support structures to be installed according to State requirements.  The 
ordinance and information are provided.  A public hearing and recommendation to Council is 
necessary. 
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





Ch78 Cell Tower Amendment Notice 2022\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Ch78 Cell Tower Amendment Notice 2022.doc 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Hybrid Public Hearing on Monday, 
October 10, 2022 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider 
proposed ordinance amendments to Sections 78-015, 78-105 and Appendix C, repealing and 
recreating Section 78-206(7)(c), to Chapter 78 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Relating to 
mobile service support structures. 
 
See additional information at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
 
In-Person: Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 


321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87259250563?pwd=cmZZYzQ4WW0xQjdBbklKSGc5Yk0xZz09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 872 5925 0563 Passcode: 566274 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-
646-0421.   
 
     
Published September 22, 2022 and September 29, 2022 Hub  
 
 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87259250563?pwd=cmZZYzQ4WW0xQjdBbklKSGc5Yk0xZz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





 


L:\DOCS\005649\001609\MEMOS\3V28632.DOCX 


0829221011 


 


 


 


 


 


 


To  City of Stoughton Plan Commission 


 


From  Rick Manthe and Matt Dregne 


 


Date  August 29, 2022   


 


Re  Mobile Support Structure Ordinance Revisions  


 


The siting of towers designed for installation of telecommunication equipment, also known 


as mobile support structures or mobile towers, remains a challenge for all Wisconsin 


municipalities. While state law preempts many local requirements, the City does retain 


limited discretion regarding mobile support structure placement. In conjunction with City 


planning staff, we have developed a recommended proposal that would bring the City’s 


code of ordinances up to date with recent state law changes while still maintaining some 


control over mobile support structure placement, and effectively encouraging the 


placement of towers in commercial or industrial districts.  


 


1. State Law Prohibitions. 


 


Before explaining the recommended changes to the City’s ordinances, it is important to 


provide context for what the City can actually regulate regarding mobile towers.  


 


As it relates to mobile towers, state law has preempted many types of local government 


regulations. The City may not do any of the following: 


 


A. Impose environmental testing, sampling, or monitoring requirements, or other 


compliance measures for radio frequency emissions, on mobile service facilities or 


mobile radio service providers. 


 


B. Impose a moratorium on the permitting, construction, or approval of siting and 


construction of mobile support structures. 


 


C. Prohibit the placement of a mobile service support structure in particular locations 


within the City. 


 







L:\DOCS\005649\001609\MEMOS\3V28632.DOCX 


0829221011 2 


D. Charge a mobile radio service provider a fee in excess of $500 or $3,000 


depending on the type of deployment. 


 


E. Charge a mobile radio service provider any recurring fee. 


 


F. Permit 3rd party consultants to charge an applicant for any travel expenses 


incurred in the consultant's review of mobile service permits or applications. 


 


G. Disapprove a mobile tower based solely on aesthetic concerns. 


 


H. Enact or enforce an ordinance related to radio frequency signal strength or the 


adequacy of mobile service quality. 


 


I. Impose a surety requirement, unless the requirement is competitively neutral, 


nondiscriminatory, and consistent with surety requirements for other facilities and 


structures in the City which fall into disuse. There is a rebuttable presumption that 


a surety requirement of $20,000 or less complies with this restriction. 


 


J. Prohibit the placement of emergency power systems. 


 


K. Require that a mobile service support structure be placed on property owned by 


the City. 


 


L. Disapprove an application based solely on the height of the mobile service support 


structure or on whether the structure requires lighting. 


 


M. Condition approval of a mobile tower on the agreement of the structure or mobile 


service facility owner to provide space on or near the structure for the use of or by 


the City at less than market rate. 


 


N. Limit the duration of any permit that is granted. 


 


O. Require an applicant to construct a distributed antenna system instead of either 


constructing a new mobile service support structure or engaging in collocation. 


 


P. Disapprove an application based on an assessment by the City of the suitability of 


other locations for conducting the activity. 


 


Q. Require that a mobile service support structure, existing structure, or mobile 


service facilities have or be connected to backup battery power. 


 







L:\DOCS\005649\001609\MEMOS\3V28632.DOCX 


0829221011 3 


R. Impose a setback or fall zone requirement for a mobile service support structure 


that is different from a requirement that is imposed on other types of commercial 


structures. 


 


S. Limit the height of a mobile service support structure to under 200 feet. 


 


T. Condition the approval of an application on, or otherwise require, the applicant's 


agreement to indemnify or insure the City. 


 


U. Condition the approval of an application on, or otherwise require, the applicant's 


agreement to permit the City to place at or collocate with the applicant's support 


structure any mobile service facilities provided or operated by the City. 
 


Wis. Stat. § 66.0404(4). This list of state preemptions is wide ranging and severely curtails 


the City’s ability to regulate the siting and construction of mobile support structures.  


 


While state law preempts many aspects of local cell tower regulations, recently the statutes 


were amended to grant more flexibility with setbacks in zoning districts that allow single-


family residences. Under this exception, the City may enact a setback requirement equal to 


the height of a mobile support structure in any zoning district that allows single-family 


residential use, or on any parcel adjacent to a property that allows single-family residential 


use. Wis. Stat. § 66.0404(4e). The setback would be measured from the lot line of the 


parcels.  


 


2. Current City Regulations of Mobile Support Structures. 


 


The City currently regulates mobile support structures via a conditional use permit process. 


See Stoughton Code § 78-206(7)(c). The current ordinance was adopted prior to state law 


changes preempting many local requirements. As a result, many provisions of the City’s 


current requirements have questionable validity and may not be enforceable. 


 


3. Ordinance Recommendations. 


 


We met with planning and zoning staff to discuss possible ordinance options for mobile 


support structures. After that discussion, we believe the most effective way to regulate the 


placement of mobile support structures is to utilize a setback requirement equal to the 


height of the tower in zoning districts that permit single-family residential uses, or on 


parcels adjacent to zoning districts that permit single-family residential uses. 


 


Staff believe with the current amount and location of zoning districts that permit single-


family residential uses, and the lot sizes in those districts, a setback restriction will 


effectively prohibit cell towers in those zoning districts. In turn, this will effectively lead 


to placement of cell towers in commercial and industrial type districts, where cell towers 







L:\DOCS\005649\001609\MEMOS\3V28632.DOCX 


0829221011 4 


are more suitable. To accomplish this, the proposed ordinance would make mobile towers 


a permitted use in all zoning districts, subject to the setback requirements explained above. 


 


An additional option the City could consider is making mobile support structures a 


conditional use in some zoning districts and permitted uses in other districts. This option, 


while legally possible, does pose some challenges.  


 


To use a conditional use approval, the City would need to create a conditional use process 


that has measurable standards for obtaining a conditional use permit. Wis. Stat. § 


62.23(7)(de)2.b.. If the applicant establishes compliance with those standards with 


substantial evidence, then the City must grant the conditional use permit. Wis. Stat. § 


62.23(7)(de)2.a.. Given the significant restrictions imposed by state law, creating 


measurable standards that provide the City with the regulatory authority it would desire 


would be difficult.  


 


However, one criteria the City could include in a conditional use process is to require that 


a mobile tower cannot decrease property values on adjacent properties. Property values are 


measurable criteria, and the Wisconsin court of appeals recently determined such a 


consideration compliant with state law. See Eco-Site, LLC v. Town of Cedarburg, 2019 WI 


App 42, ¶21, 388 Wis. 2d 375, 933 N.W.2d 179.  


 


With that said, a property value requirement could be difficult for the City to evaluate. One 


issue is determining what role staff would play. The City would need to decide if staff 


would do their own property value analysis, or simply rely on information that the applicant 


provides. The conditional use criteria could specify that the applicant must establish with 


substantial evidence that property values will not decrease. At that point, it would be up to 


members of the public to submit their own evidence of decrease in property values. Unless 


City staff or members of the public are able to provide evidence of a project’s impact on 


property values, the only evidence available would be from the applicant. 


 


The difficulties of administering a conditional use process for mobile towers is why we 


recommend that the City pursue the single-family residential setback option only. It will 


be much easier to administer, and effectively push mobile towers to more desirable 


locations.  







 


L:\DOCS\005649\001609\ORDINANCE\3UN7404.DOCX 


0829221003 1 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


An Ordinance Amending Sections 78-015 and 78-105, repealing and recreating Section 78-


206(7)(c), and amending Appendix C to Chapter 78 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, 


 Relating to Mobile service support structures 


 


   


Committee Action:    Recommend approval   -   0 with the Mayor voting. 


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O -   - 2022 Date 


Introduced:   


 


 


  


RECITALS 


 


A. Purpose.  The purpose of this ordinance is to regulate the siting and construction of new 


mobile service support structures in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 66.0404. 


 


B. Authority.  The City has the specific authority under Wis. Stat. § 62.23 and § 66.0404, to 


adopt and enforce this ordinance. 


 


ORDINANCE 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


1. Section 78-015 is amended to remove the term “Communication tower.” 


 


2. Section 78-015 is amended to add the following term: 


 


Mobile service support structure: See Wis. Stat. § 66.0404(1)(n). 


 


3. Section 78-105 (1) (a) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Rural Holding District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


4. Section 78-105 (2) (a) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Exurban Residential (ER-1) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


5. Section 78-105 (2) (b) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Single-Family Residential -3 (SR-3) District: 


 







 


L:\DOCS\005649\001609\ORDINANCE\3UN7404.DOCX 


0829221003 2 


Mobile service support structure  


 


6. Section 78-105 (2) (c) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Single-Family Residential -4 (SR-4) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


7. Section 78-105 (2) (d) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Single-Family Residential -5 (SR-5) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


8. Section 78-105 (2) (e) 3. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Single-Family Residential -6 (SR-6) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


 


9. Section 78-105 (2) (f) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Two-Family Residential -6 (TR-6) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


10. Section 78-105 (2) (g) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Multi-Family Residential – 10 (MR-10) 


District: 


 


Mobile service support structure 


 


11. Section 78-105 (2) (h) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Multi-Family Residential – 24 (MR-24) 


District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


12. Section 78-105 (3) (a) 3. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Neighborhood Office (NO) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 







 


L:\DOCS\005649\001609\ORDINANCE\3UN7404.DOCX 


0829221003 3 


13. Section 78-105 (3) (b) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Planned Office (PO) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


14. Section 78-105 (4) (a) 3. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Neighborhood Business (NB) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


15. Section 78-105 (4) (b) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Planned Business (PB) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


16. Section 78-105 (4) (c) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Central Business (CB) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


17. Section 78-105 (5) (a) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Planned Industrial (PI) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


18. Section 78-105 (5) (a) 2. b. is amended to remove “Communication Tower (per 


Section 78-206(7)(e))” from the list of principal land uses permitted as a 


conditional use in the Planned Industrial (PI) District. 


 


19. Section 78-105 (5) (b) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the General Industrial (GI) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


20. Section 78-105 (5) (b) 2. b. is amended to remove “Communication Tower (per 


Section 78-206(7)(e))” from the list of principal land uses permitted as a 


conditional use in the General Industrial (GI) District. 


 


21. Section 78-105 (5) (c) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Heavy Industrial (HI) District: 


 







 


L:\DOCS\005649\001609\ORDINANCE\3UN7404.DOCX 


0829221003 4 


Mobile service support structure  


 


22. Section 78-105 (5) (c) 2. b. is amended to remove “Communication Tower (per 


Section 78-206(7)(e))” from the list of principal land uses permitted as a 


conditional use in the Heavy Industrial (HI) District. 


 


23. Section 78-105 (6) (a) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Institutional (I) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


 


24. Section 78-206(7)(c) is repealed and recreated to read as follows: 


 


In zoning districts where single-family uses are permitted principal uses, or on 


parcels adjacent to a parcel where single-family uses are permitted principal uses, 


the setback requirement for a mobile service support structure shall be equal to 


the height of the mobile service support structure. 


 


 


25. Appendix C of Chapter 78 is amended to replace “Communication tower” with 


“Mobile service support structure.” 


 


26. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of 


publication. 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:            


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest             


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
09/12/22 
Page 3 of 3 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  091222.docx 


 


 
Motion by Bradford to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM resolution as 
presented, 2nd by Majewski. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 


10. Discuss a zoning code amendment for communication towers. 
Attorney Rick Manthe discussed the state of City ordinances along with an overview of State 
and Federal regulations governing communication towers.  He discussed the concept to 
provide setback distances from properties that allow single-family homes and the more 
complicated process to develop a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) process. He discussed 
challenges with using a CUP process for regulation of such towers. 
 
The Commissioners agree we should move forward with considering ordinance amendments 
to restrict the setback distances from properties that allow single-family homes. 
 


11. Future agenda items. 
314 W. Main Street site plan; GDP for Lots 1, 3 and 4 at 51 West; Stone Crest Urban Service 
Area Amendment; Magnolia Springs Preliminary Plat 
 


12. Adjournment. 
Motion by Majewski to adjourn at 6:55  pm, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Rodney J. Scheel 



mstacey

Highlight





		ADP7FD4.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, September 12, 2022 at 6:00 pm Hybrid Meeting









